








 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 

MEETING 
 

 

 
       

 

 

 

 

       

 

 

 
 

OCTOBER 1, 2012 



BOARD OF EDUCATION 

MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

OMAHA, NEBRASKA 

 

BOARD MEETING                STROH ADMINISTRATION CENTER 

6:00 P.M.                              5606 SOUTH 147th STREET 

                                                      October 1, 2012 

  

AGENDA 

 

A. Call to Order 

 

The Public Meeting Act is posted on the Wall and Available for Public Inspection 

 

B. Pledge of Allegiance 

 

C. Roll Call 

 

D. Public Comments on agenda items – This is the proper time for public questions and comments on agenda items 

only.  Please make sure a request form is given to the Board President before the meeting begins. 

 

E. Routine Matters 

1. *Approval of Board of Education Minutes – September 17, 2012 

2. *Approval of Bills 

3. *Receive the Treasurer’s Report and Place on File 

4. Committee of the Whole Meeting – September 24, 2012 

 

F. Information Items 

1. Employees of the Month 

2. Superintendent’s Comments 

3. Board Comments/Announcements 

4. Report from Student Representatives 

 

G. Unfinished Business: 

 

H. New Business 

1.    Approval of Superintendent Goals for 2012-2013 

2.    Reaffirm Policy 6040 –





BOARD OF EDUCATION 

MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

OMAHA, NEBRASKA  

 

BOARD MEETING            STROH ADMINISTRATION CENTER 



 

Board Meeting Agenda 

October 1, 2012 

Page 2 

 

 

 







 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Millard Public Schools 
October 1, 2012 

 

8









Millard Public Schools
Check Register







Millard Public Schools
Check Register









Millard Public Schools



Millard Publid0Schools



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  October 1, 2012

Date: 9/26/2012

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount

BIANCA CHRISTENSEN137605396877 768.00 

ACCUCUT LLC010298396894 20.00 

ALEKS CORPORATION136499396899 917.50 

APPLE COMPUTER INC012989396909 2,192.00 

CASSIDY BENJAMIN138888396928 60.00 

DEMCO INC032800396994 208.30 

ZACH ERIKSEN138591397026 40.00 

ROBERT W. ERLANDSON038431397027 270.00 

TAYLOR GILROY138064397055 25.00 

TARA GOSS138889397061 60.00 

HIGHSMITH LLC138687397081 27.96 

HODGES BADGE COMPANY132721397084 85.50 

JUDE F HOLZER138849397085 160.00 

YUAN YUAN JIANG138369397111 60.00 

JAMES H JOHNSON138260397116 47.00 

MITCHELL JOHN KERFELD139338397127 47.00 

DANA S KRUSE138836397141 47.00 

CALEB KRUSE139134397142 50.00 

GRACE LAY139353397156 50.00 

SHEA MARCINSKI138768397175 60.00 

EMILY MCCOY138066397182 60.00 

KATHERINE MCGINN138156397187 25.00 

NOVA HEALTH EQUIPMENT COMPANY069930397235 3,250.45 

ERIN OELTJEN137588397238 42.00 

HANNAH MARIE OELTJEN138769397239 70.00 

OFFICE DEPOT  84133510100013397247 90.75 

MATTHEW C PROPHIT138738397284 60.00 

SCHOOL SPECIALTY INC082350397317 210.24 

BROOKE STILMOCK138198397353 60.00 

LANE STILMOCK139354397354 50.00 

TATIANNA TRABUCCO139138397379 50.00 

BRENT A WELSCH139336397403 45.00 

10,958.70 Total for ACTIVITY FUND

2,980,890.76 Report Total               

21



9/25/2012 10/1/2012 10/1/2012

Lot Quantity
1 20
2 3
3 1
4 26
5 4
6 5
7 25
8 1
9

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20



Committee Meeting Minutes 
September 24, 2012 
 
The members of the Board of Education met as a Committee of the Whole on Monday, September 24, at 
6:00 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration Center, 5606 South 147th Street. 
 
Present:  Linda Poole, Dave Anderson, Mike Pate, Mike Kennedy, Todd Clarke and Patrick Ricketts 
 
Also in attendance were Keith Lutz, Ken Fossen, Mark Feldhausen and other Administrators. 
 
Jim Sutfin and Kim Saum-Mills gave a  power point presentation on Performance Based Administrator 
Evaluation.  They reviewed the Administrator Evaluation Process which is brought back to the Board 
every couple of years for them to have an over view of what Millard does in their Administrator 
Evaluations process. 
 
A Planner from Kansas City spoke to the Committee of the Whole on the services they offer.  The intent 
of them being at the Committee meeting was to show the Board the scope of what they do and what they 
can do for Millard.  They talked to the Board about the advantages of using a firm like theirs.   
They work with analysis, education, demographics, boundaries, capacities, staffing and more.  This group 
can basically give Millard another point of view on how changes can be made within the District.  Dr. 
Lutz knows schools that have used this firm and was drawn to them for help needed in Boundary changes 
that will have to be made.   
 
The Committee of the Whole meeting was adjourned at 7:20 p.m.      
 
 
 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
                            Chairman 

23



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 

 

AGENDA ITEM:   Approval of Superintendent Goals for 2012-2013  
 
MEETING DATE:   October 1, 2012 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Board of Education 
 
TITLE AND BRIEF DESCRIPTION:  Each year the Board approves the goals set for the 
Superintendent 
 
ACTION DESIRED:  Approval 
 
BACKGROUND:   
 
OPTIONS/ALTERNATIVE CONSIDERATIONS: 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS:  Approval 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:   
 
IMPLICATIONS OF ADOPTION OR REJECTION: 
 
TIME LINE: 
 
PERSONS RESPONSIBLE:  Board of Education 
 
�6�8�3�(�5�,�1�7�(�1�'�(�1�7�¶�6���$�3�3�5�2�9�$�/������___________________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 

24

kksullivan
Dr Lutz



 

SUPERINTENDENT GOALS 2012-2013 

 
1. Come up with a proposal for our next bond issue with not only the amount of the 

project, but also a contingency plan if it does not pass again.  The contingency plan 
may need to include possible changes in school boundaries. 
 

2. Explore our benefit options and review our health care benefits in order to contain 
our costs while at the same time making sure that we remain competitive. 

 

3. Examine the assessments that we currently give, look at the number given at each 
grade level, when they are given, the relevancy and timing of the assessments and the 
time that they take away from teaching and learning to decide which assessments are 
needed and if any can be discontinued and whether we need to replace any with a 
different assessment.  Are our assessments what we need for our students to be 
college and career ready? 

25



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

AGENDA ITEM: Reaffirm Policy 6040—Ceremonies and Observances

MEETING DATE: October 1, 2012

DEPARTMENT: Educational Services

TITLE AND Reaffirmation of Policy 6040—Ceremonies and Observances
BRIEF DESCRIPTION:

ACTION DESIRED: X Approval

BACKGROUND: N/A

RECOMMENDATIONS: Reaffirm Policy 6040

STRATEGIC PLAN: N/A

REFERENCE: N/A

IMPLICATIONS OF

kksullivan
Dr Lutz



Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment

Ceremonies and Observances 6040

The flags of the United States of America and the State of Nebraska shall be prominently displayed on the school
grounds of every school on each day that such school is in session. All flag displays shall be in accordance with the
standards prescribed for the display of the flag of the United States of America.



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

AGENDA ITEM: Approve Rule 6040.1: Ceremonies and Observances—Flag Salute and
Treatment

MEETING DATE: October 1, 2012

DEPARTMENT: Educational Services

TITLE AND Approve Rule 6040.1: Ceremonies and Observances—Flag Salute
BRIEF DESCRIPTION: and Treatment

ACTION DESIRED: X Approval

BACKGROUND: N/A

RECOMMENDATIONS: Approve Rule 6040.1

STRATEGIC PLAN: N/A

REFERENCE: N/A

IMPLICATIONS OF
ADOPTION OR REJECTION: N/A

TIMELINE: N/A

RESPONSIBLE
PERSON(S):

kksullivan
Dr Lutz



Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment

Ceremonies and Observances – Flag Salute and Treatment 6040.1



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

AGENDA ITEM: Approve Rule 6040.2: Ceremonies and Observances—Pledge of
Allegiance

MEETING DATE: October 1, 2012

DEPARTMENT: Educational Services

TITLE AND Approve Rule 6040.2: Ceremonies and Observances—Pledge of
BRIEF DESCRIPTION: Allegiance

ACTION DESIRED: X Approval

BACKGROUND: N/A

RECOMMENDATIONS: Approve Rule 6040.2

STRATEGIC PLAN: N/A

REFERENCE: N/A

IMPLICATIONS OF
ADOPTION OR REJECTION: N/A

TIMELINE: N/A

RESPONSIBLE
PERSON(S): Mark Feldhausen, Assoc. Supt. (Educational Services)

SUPERINTENDENT’S
APPROVAL:

30

kksullivan
Dr Lutz



Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment

Ceremonies and Observances – Pledge of Allegiance 6040.2

Each of the District’s schools shall establish a period of time during the school day, when a
majority of the students are scheduled to be present, during which time students will be led in the
recitation of the Pledge of Allegiance in the presence of the flag of the United States of America.
Student participation in the recitation of the Pledge of Allegiance shall be voluntary. Students not
participating in the recitation of the Pledge of Allegiance shall be permitted to silently stand or
remain seated but shall be required to respect the rights of those students electing to participate.

Legal Reference: Title 92, Nebraska Administrative Code, Chapter 10-003.12

Related Policies & Rules: 6040, 6040.1

Rule Approved: October 15, 2012 Millard Public Schools
Omaha, Nebraska

31



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

AGENDA ITEM: Reaffirm Policy 6920 Community Resources

MEETING DATE: October 1, 2012

DEPARTMENT: Educational Services

TITLE AND Reaffirmation of Policy 6920 Community Resources
BRIEF DESCRIPTION:

ACTION DESIRED: X Approval

BACKGROUND: N/A

RECOMMENDATIONS: Reaffirm Policy 6920

STRATEGIC PLAN: N/A

REFERENCE: N/A

IMPLICATIONS OF
ADOPTION OR REJECTION: N/A

TIMELINE: N/A

RESPONSIBLE
PERSON(S): Mark Feldhausen, Assoc. Supt. (Educational Services)

SUPERINTENDENT’S
APPROVAL:

32

kksullivan
Dr Lutz



Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment

Community Resources 6920

The Millard School District recognizes the potential education contribution that lies within the Millard community.
Instructional staff members are encouraged to use various members of the community and their particular areas of
expertise to enhance the overall instructional program.

Policy Adopted: June 16, 1975 Millard Public Schools
Revised: September 13, 1999 Omaha, Nebraska
Reaffirmed: September 5, 2006;October 1, 2012

33



 -1- 

AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 
 
AGENDA ITEM:  Rule 7305.1 Ð Web and Social Media Publishing 
 
 
MEETING DATE:  October 1, 2012  
 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Technology Division 
 
 
TITLE AND  
BRIEF DESCRIPTION: Rule 7305.1 Ð Web and Social Media Publishing 
 
ACTION DESIRED: Approval  X  
 
 
BACKGROUND: This Rule is being revised to reflect a change in title and 

clarification of approved social media sites. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS: Approve Rule 7305.1  Ð Web and Social Media Publishing 
 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:     N/A 
 
 
TIMELINE:  Immediate 
 
 
RESPONSIBLE PERSON(S):  Dr. Mark Feldhausen, Dr. James Sutfin, Victoria L. Hoskovec 
 
 
SUPERINTENDENTÕS APPROVAL:    ______________________                                                    
       (Signature) 
 
BOARD ACTION: 
 

34



Technology          
 
Web and Social Media Publishing         7305.1  
 
I. Definitions 

 
A. Social Media Ð electronic communication systems, including web logs (blogs), internet chat rooms or 

bulletin boards, learning management systems, websites, e-mail, and cellular and/or mobile device 
applications, whose primary purpose is to provide a multi-directional communication venue for the 
user and others. 

 



6265, 6605.1(I), 7100.1, and 7310.1, which are incorporated herein. 
 

F. Guidelines for web pages and the use of approved social media sites shall be established by the 
Superintendent or designee and shall be published in the DistrictÕs Technology UserÕs Manual. 

  
III.  Professional Responsibility and Person Responsibility 
 

A. Professional Responsibility.  When using District web and or approved social media sites, staff may 
not engage in the following: 

 
1. Simultaneously identify oneself as a District employee and send, solicit, or display materials that 

are offensive, including sexually oriented material, graphic depictions of violence, or material that 
offends or harasses on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, gender, marital status, 
disability, or age. 

 
2. Unprofessional communication that could negatively impact the DistrictÕs reputation or interfere 

with the DistrictÕs core mission, or unprofessional/inappropriate communication regarding 
members of the DistrictÕs community. 
 

3. Acting as a representative of the District, or acting in a way that would infer that one is a District 
representative or acting for and on behalf of the District when not authorized to do so (e.g., 
contacting the media or government officials with District e-mail, responding to complaints or 
questions about District business on internet discussion groups, etc.). 
 

4. Sending, receiving, printing or otherwise disseminating proprietary data, trade secrets or other 
confidential information in violation of District policy, proprietary agreements or other contractual 
terms.  Using District-owned data or work product for personal gain.  Using District trademarks 
(name, logos), or branding without authorization from the Office of Communications. 

 
5. Inappropriately sharing confidential information related to District business, including but not 

limited to, personnel actions, internal investigations, research material, or student information. 
 

6. Any activity in violation of local, state, or federal law as it relates to the staff memberÕs 
employment with the District, including, but not limited to, defamatory remarks; destruction of 
District data or equipment; or accessing or sharing information in violation of HIPAA, FERPA, 
CIPA, or COPPA.  This includes any activity that would cause the District to not be in compliance 
with state or federal law. 

 
7. Any activity in violation of District policies and rules, including, but not limited to the standards, 

criteria, and limitations of District Policies and Rules 1115.1(I), 1306.1, 3150.1, 4001, 4145.1, 
4155.1, 4156.1, 5010, 5020, 5300.3, 5400.6, 5510.1(I), 5800.1, 6002, 6265, 6605.1(I), 7100.1, and 
7310.1, which are incorporated herein. 

 
B. Personal Responsibility.  When using non-District web sites and/or personal social media sites outside 

of the duties as a staff member of the District, staff should consider the following: 
 
1. For certificated staff, the DistrictÕs Code of Ethics and the State Standards of Professional Practice 



4. Staff should not ÒfriendÓ students or parents on their personal Facebook pages until the student has 
been graduated from the District for a least one year. 

 
IV. Privacy 
 

A. All reasonable steps shall be taken to insure that the use of the Internet or World Wide Web and 
approved social media sites 





kksullivan
Dr Lutz



 

01-675344.1 
4815-7092-1745.2  

 

RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF EDUCATION OF DOUGLAS COUNTY SCHOOL 
DISTRICT 017, IN THE STATE OF NEBRASKA (MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS): 

WHEREAS, the Board of Education of Douglas County School District 017, in the State 
�R�I�� �1�H�E�U�D�V�N�D�� ���0�L�O�O�D�U�G�� �3�X�E�O�L�F�� �6�F�K�R�R�O�V���� ���W�K�H�� �³�'�L�V�W�U�L�F�W�´���� �S�U�H�Y�L�R�X�V�O�\�� �K�D�V�� �L�V�V�X�H�G�� �L�W�V�� ������������������������







 

4829-1801-2433.2 2 

Bonds and the security therefore set forth in the Preliminary Official Statement with respect to 
the Bond�V�����W�K�H���³Preliminary �2�I�I�L�F�L�D�O���6�W�D�W�H�P�H�Q�W�´�������D�V���G�H�V�F�U�L�E�H�G���E�H�O�R�Z�� 

DEFINITIONS  

Capitalized terms used but not defined herein shall have the definitions assigned to them 
in the Preliminary Official Statement. 

INTEREST PAYMENTS AND MATURITIES 

The Bonds 



 

4829-1801-2433.2 3 

REDEMPTION PROVISIONS 

The Bonds are not subject to redemption at the option of the District in advance of their 
respective maturities. 

RATINGS 

�0�R�R�G�\�¶�V�� �,�Q�Y�H�V�W�R�U�V�� �6�H�U�Y�L�F�H�� �D�Q�G�� �6�W�D�Q�G�D�U�G �	�� �3�R�R�U�¶�V�� �5�D�W�L�Q�J�V�� �6�H�U�Y�L�F�H�V���� �D�� �'�L�Y�L�V�L�R�Q�� �R�I�� �7�K�H��
McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc., have assigned to the Bonds the respective ratings set forth on the 
cover page of the Preliminary Official Statement. 

ADJUSTMENTS OF PRINCIPAL AMOUNTS 

The District reserves the right to change the principal amount of each maturity by not 
�P�R�U�H�� �W�K�D�Q�� �������� �I�U�R�P�� �W�K�H�� �D�P�R�X�Q�W�V�� �V�H�W�� �I�R�U�W�K�� �D�E�R�Y�H�� �X�Q�G�H�U�� �³�,�1�7�(�5�(�6�7�� �3�$�<�0�(�1�7�6�� �$�1�'��
�0�$�7�8�5�,�7�,�(�6�´�� �S�U�L�R�U�� �W�R�� �W�K�H�� �H�Q�G�� �R�I�� �W�K�H�� �E�X�V�L�Q�H�V�V�� �G�D�\�� �R�Q�� �Z�K�L�F�K�� �E�L�G�V�� �D�U�H�� �U�H�F�H�L�Y�H�G�� �W�R�� �D�G�M�X�Vt for 
substantially level annual debt service and to properly size the issue.  Notice of any adjustment 
will be given to the winning bidder promptly.  If the principal amount is modified, the 
underwriting discount percentage (not the dollar amount of the underwriting discount) will be 
held constant according to the underwriting discount percentage imputed in the reoffering yields 
of the successful bidder. By submitting its bid, each bidder agrees to purchase the Bonds in such 
adjusted principal amounts and to modify the purchase price for the Bonds to reflect such 
adjusted principal amounts and that the interest rates for the various maturities as designated by 
the bidder in its bid will apply to any adjusted principal amount designated by the District for 
such maturities. 

TERM BONDS 

Any bidder may, at its option, specify that the maturities of the Bonds will consist of term 
Bonds which are subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption in consecutive years 
�L�P�P�H�G�L�D�W�H�O�\�� �S�U�H�F�H�G�L�Q�J�� �W�K�H�� �P�D�W�X�U�L�W�\�� �W�K�H�U�H�R�I���� ���D�� �³�7�H�U�P�� �%�R�Q�G�´���� �D�V�� �G�H�V�L�J�Q�D�W�H�G�� �L�Q�� �W�K�H�� �E�L�G�� �R�I�� �V�X�F�K��
bidder.  In the event that the bid of the successful bidder specifies that any maturity of the Bonds 
will be a Term Bond, such Term Bond will be subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption on 
November 15 of each applicable year, in the principal amount for such year as set forth above 
�X�Q�G�H�U�� �³�,�1�7�(�5�(�6�7�� �3�$�<�0�(�1�7�6�� �$�1�'�� �0�$�7�8�5�,�7�,�(�6���´�� �D�V�� �W�K�H�� �V�D�P�H�� �P�D�\�� �E�H�� �P�R�G�L�I�L�H�G�� �D�V�� �V�H�W��
�I�R�U�W�K���D�E�R�Y�H���X�Q�G�H�U���³�$�'�-�8�6�7�0�(�1�7���2�)���3�5�,�1�&�,�3�$�/���$�0�2�8�1�7�6���´���D�W���D���U�H�G�H�P�S�W�L�R�Q���S�U�L�F�H���H�T�X�D�O��
to the principal amount thereof (with no redemption premium), plus accrued interest to the 
redemption date. 

AMENDMENT OF NOTICE; RIGHT TO CHANGE TIMING AND TERMS OF SALE 

The District reserves the right to further amend this Official Notice of Bond Sale at any 



 

4829-1801-2433.2 4 

postponed, an alternative sale date and time will be announced at least one business day prior to 
such alternative sale date.  On any such alternative sale date and time, any bidder may submit 
bids electronically as described above for the purchase of the Bonds in conformity in all respects 
with the provisions of this Official Notice of Bond Sale, except for the date and time of sale and 
except for any changes announced at the time the sale date and time are announced. 

SUBMISSION OF BIDS 

Electronic proposals must be submitted through the Approved Provider.  Any electronic 
proposal submitted through any other means shall be disregarded.  Bidding for the Bonds will 
begin at 11:30 a.m. Eastern Daylight Time (10:30 a.m. Central Daylight Time), as indicated 
above.  The receipt



 

4829-1801-2433.2 5 

electronically transmitted through the Approved Provider shall form a contract and the successful 
bidder shall be bound by the terms of such contract. 

The winning bidder will be required to wire a good faith deposit by 5:00 p.m. Eastern 
�'�D�\�O�L�J�K�W���7�L�P�H���R�Q���W�K�H���E�L�G���G�D�W�H�����V�H�H���E�H�O�R�Z���X�Q�G�H�U���³�*�2�2�'���)�$�,�7�+���'�(�3�2�6�,�7���$�1�'���0�(�7�+�2�'���2�)��
�3�$�<�0�(�1�7���)�2�5���7�+�(���%�2�1�'�6�´���� 

ALL- OR-NONE BIDS 

Each bid submitted must be a bid for purchase of all of the Bonds.  No bid for less than 
all of the Bonds will be accepted by the District. 

INTEREST RATE CONSTRAINTS  

All bids must comply with the following conditions:  (1) each interest rate specified in 
any bid must be a multiple of one-eighth or one-twentieth of one percent; (2) no Bond may bear 
more than one rate of interest; (3) each Bond must bear interest from its date to its stated 
maturity date at the interest rate specified in the bid; (4) all Bonds maturing on the same date 
must bear the same rate of interest and (5) no Bond may bear a zero rate of interest. 

Each bid on the Bonds must specify the total interest cost to the District during the term 
of such Bonds on the basis of such bid, the premium, if any, offered by the bidder, and the net 
interest cost to the District on the basis of such bid, all certified by the bidder to be correct.  The 
District will be entitled to rely on the Bond of correctness of the bidder.  Each bid must also 
specify the true interest cost to the District on the basis of such bid, as further described below 
�X�Q�G�H�U���³�%�$�6�,�6���2�)���$�:�$�5�'���´ 

PRICES 

Bidders must specify a purchase price of not less than 99.00% of the aggregate principal 
amount of the Bonds, plus accrued interest to the date of delivery.  Purchasers must pay accrued 
interest, if any, computed on a 30/360-day basis, from the date of the Bonds to their date of 
delivery. 

BASIS OF AWARD 

The Bond



 

4829-1801-2433.2 6 

the TIC specified and the interest rates and premium specified, the specified interest rates and 
premium shall govern, and the TIC specified in the bid shall be adjusted accordingly.  If two or 



 

4829-1801-2433.2 7 

book entries made on the books and records of DTC and its participants.  Unless the 
book



 

4829-1801-2433.2 8 

continuing compliance by the District with certain covenants, the interest on the Bonds is 
excluded from gross income for purposes of federal income taxation under existing laws, 
regulations, rulings and judicial decisions, with such exceptions as shall be required by the terms 
of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and that such interest is not a specific item of 
tax preference for purposes of the federal alternative minimum tax on individuals and 
corporations.  This paragraph is subject, in all respects, to the opinion of Kutak Rock LLP set 
forth in the Preliminary Official Statement and the information contained therein under the 
�F�D�S�W�L�R�Q���³�7�$�;���(�;�(�0�3�7�,�2�1���´ 

DELIVERY AND PAYMENT 

Delivery of the Bonds will be made without cost to DTC.  Payment for the Bonds must 
be made in immediately available funds.  Delivery of the Bonds will be made on or about 
November 16, 2012*.  Payment of the purchase price due at delivery must be made in Federal 
Reserve funds for immediate and unconditional credit to the District. 

PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL STATEMENT 

The Preliminary Official Statement may be viewed and downloaded from 
www.munidoc.com ���V�H�O�H�F�W���³�9�L�H�Z���&�X�U�U�H�Q�W���3�R�V�W�L�Q�J�V�´���D�Q�G���W�K�H�Q���V�H�O�H�F�W���³�'���$�����'�D�Y�L�G�V�R�Q���	 C�R���´�����R�U��



 

4829-1801-2433.2 9 

seventh business day following the date of the sale.  Bidders should expect that the final Official 
Statement will not be available prior to the seventh business day following the date of the sale, 
and should not issue confirmations which request payment prior to that date.  This paragraph will 
constitute a contract with the winning bidder or bidders upon acceptance of their bids by the 
District, in compliance with Section 240.15c2-12(b)(3) in Chapter II of Title 17 of the Code of 
Federal Regulations. 

CONTINUIN G DISCLOSURE 

The District will enter into an undertaking to provide ongoing disclosure for the benefit 
of the Bond owners as required by Section (b)(5)(i) of Securities and Exchange Commission 
Rule 15c2-12 under the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (17 C.F.R. Part 240, 
§ 240.15c2-12), in substantially the form shown in the Preliminary Official Statement. 

CUSIP 

The District will obtain and pay for CUSIP numbers for the Bonds.  If an incorrect 
number is imprinted on any Bond or if a number is not printed thereon, any such error or 
omission shall not constitute cause for the successful bidder to refuse delivery of any Bond. 

BLUE SKY F  or 



 

4829-1801-2433.2 10 

GOVERNING LAW 

This Official Notice of Bond Sale, and upon the acceptance by the District of a bid for the 
purchase of the Bonds in accordance with the terms of this Official Notice of Bond Sale, the 
resulting contract for the purchase of said Bonds, shall be deemed to have been made in 
Nebraska and shall be governed by and construed and interpreted under the laws of the State of 
Nebraska applicable to contracts made and performed in the State of Nebraska.  Additionally, the 
Bonds shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Nebraska. 

Dated:  October ____, 2012. 

Patrick Ricketts 
Treasurer 
Douglas County School District 0017 
5606 South 147th Street 
Omaha, NE  68137 

51



  

PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL STATEMENT DATED __________ __, 2012 
 

THIS COVER PAGE CONTAINS CERTAIN INFORMATION FOR QUICK REFERENCE ONLY.  IT IS NOT A SUMMARY 
OF THIS ISSUE.  INVESTORS MUST READ THE ENTIRE OFFICIAL STATEMENT TO OBTAIN INFORMATION 
ESSENTIAL TO THE MAKING OF AN INFORMED INVESTMENT DECISION. 
 
REFUNDING ISSUE RATINGS:   �0�R�R�G�\�¶�V:  �³___�  ́ 
FULL BOOK-ENTRY �6�W�D�Q�G�D�U�G���	���3�R�R�U�¶�V�� �³___�  ́ 
NOT BANK QUALIFIED �6�H�H���³�5�$�7�,�1�*�6�´���K�H�U�H�L�Q 
 
In the opinion of Kutak Rock LLP, Bond Counsel, under existing laws, regulations, rulings and judicial decisions and assuming the accuracy of 
certain representations and continuing compliance with certain covenants, interest on the Bonds (including any original issue discount properly 
allocable to the Bonds) is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes and is neither a specific preference item nor included in 
adjusted current earnings  for purposes of the federal alternative minimum tax.  Bond Counsel also is of the opinion that, under existing laws of the 
State of Nebraska, such interest is exempt from Nebraska state income taxation. See �³TAX EXEMPTION�´ herein. 
 

$13,100,000� 
DOUGLAS COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 0017 

IN THE STATE OF NEBRASKA 
 (MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS) 

GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS , SERIES 2012 

Dated:  Date of Delivery Due:  November 15, as shown on the inside cover 

The Bonds will be issued in fully registered form only and, when initially issued, will be registered in the name of Cede & 
Co., as the nominee of The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York (�³�'�7�&�)́, which will act as securities 
depository for the Bonds.  Purchases of the Bonds will be made in book�±



  

MATURITY SCHEDULE 

$13,100,000� 

DOUGLAS COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 0017 
IN THE STATE OF NEBRASKA 
(MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS) 

GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS



 

DOUGLAS COUNTY SCHOOL DI STRICT 0017 
IN THE STATE OF NEBRASKA   
(MILLARD PUBLIC SCHO OLS) 

 
Board of Education 

 
Dave Anderson, President 

Linda Poole, Vice President 
Mike Kennedy, Secretary 
Patrick Ricketts, Treasurer 

Mike Pate, Member 
Todd Clarke, Member 

 
Superintendent of Schools 

 
Dr. Keith W. Lutz 

 
Administrative Staff  

 



 

 

 

REGARDING USE OF THIS OFFICIAL STATEMENT 

__________________ 

AUTHORIZED INFORMATION AND REPRESENTATIONS 





  

OFFICIAL STATEMENT 

$13,100,000� 

DOUGLAS COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 0017 
IN THE STATE OF NEBRASKA 
 



2 

THE DISTRICT  

General 

The District is a Class III school district and political subdivision organized and existing under the laws of 
the State.  The District is located in the southwestern portion of the City of Omaha, Nebraska, and an 
adjacent portion of Sarpy County, Nebraska, encompasses approximately 35 square miles, and has an 
estimated population of approximately 125,000 persons.  See �³�$�3PENDIX A - INFORMATION 
CONCERNING THE DISTRICT �± GENERAL INFORMATION.�´  

PLAN OF FINANCING  

Authorization of Bonds 



3 

THE BONDS 

General 

The Bonds will be issued in the principal amount of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof, be dated 
November 16, 2012 (the �³�'�D�W�H�G�� �'�D�W�H�´), bear interest from the Dated Date payable on May 15 and 
November 15 of each year, commencing May 15, 2013 (each, and �³�,�Q�W�H�U�H�V�W���3�D�\�P�H�Q�W���'�D�W�H�´), mature on 
November 15 in the years and the principal amounts, and bear interest at the rates (calculated on the basis 
of a 360�±day year consisting of twelve, 30�±day months) set forth on the inside cover.  Each installment of 
interest is payable by check or draft mailed by First National Bank of Omaha (the �³�5�H�J�L�V�W�U�D�U�´) on the 



4 



5 

Pursuant to Section 79-1023 et 



6 

School Finances 
 
In Nebraska, School State Aid amounts fluctuate from year to year based upon factors set in the related 
�V�W�D�W�X�W�H�V���D�Q�G���S�R�V�V�L�E�O�H���I�X�U�W�K�H�U���/�H�J�L�V�O�D�W�L�Y�H���U�H�Y�L�V�L�R�Q�V�����D�Q�G���W�K�H���'�L�V�W�U�L�F�W�¶�V���6�W�D�W�H���$�L�G���D�P�R�X�Q�W���F�R�X�O�G���L�Q�F�U�H�D�Ve or 
decrease in future years. 
 
In Fiscal Year 2011-12, the District received $76,468,282 in State Aid.  This amount included $4,411,094 
�R�I���I�H�G�H�U�D�O���P�R�Q�H�\�V���U�H�I�H�U�U�H�G���W�R���D�V���³�(�G�X�-�R�E�V���)�X�Q�G�V�´���W�K�D�W���W�K�H���1�H�E�U�D�V�N�D���/�H�J�L�V�O�D�W�X�U�H���X�V�H�G���W�R���I�X�Q�G���L�W�V���6�W�D�W�H���$�L�G��
formula for schools.  In Fiscal Year 2012-13, the District will receive $72,526,676.  The State of 
�1�H�E�U�D�V�N�D���E�X�G�J�H�W�V���R�Q���D���E�L�H�Q�Q�L�D�O���E�D�V�L�V�������,�Q���H�V�W�D�E�O�L�V�K�L�Q�J���W�K�H���6�W�D�W�H�¶�V���E�X�G�J�H�W���I�R�U���W�K�H����������-13 biennium during 
its 2011 legislative session, the Legislature appropriated $880 million for State Aid to schools.  During 
the 2012 legislative session, the Legislature reduced the appropriation to $852 million and applied the 
balance to fund other areas of the state budget and to reduce state income taxes. 
 
The District recognizes that further pressure on state revenues may have adverse effects on future levels 
of State Aid the District receives. 
 





8 

Discount Bond (determined by compounding at the close of each accrual period) and (ii) the amount 
which would have been the tax basis of such Discount Bond at the beginning of the particular accrual 
period if held by the original purchaser, less the amount of any interest payable for such Discount Bond 
during the accrual period.  The tax basis is determined by adding to the initial public offering price on 
such Discount Bond the sum of the amounts which have been treated as original issue discount for such 
purposes during all prior periods.  If such Discount Bond is sold between semiannual compounding dates, 
original issue discount which would have been accrued for the semiannual compounding period for 
federal income tax purposes is to be apportioned in equal amounts among the days in such compounding 
period. 

Owners of Discount Bonds should consult their tax advisors with respect to the determination and 
treatment of original issue discount accrued as of any date and with respect to the state and local tax 
consequences of owning a Discount Bond. 

Original Issue Premium 

The Bonds maturing in the years ____ through ____, inclusive, and ____ (collectiv�H�O�\���� �W�K�H�� �³�3�U�H�P�L�X�P��
�%�R�Q�G�V�´������ �D�U�H�� �E�H�L�Q�J�� �V�R�O�G���D�W���D�� �S�U�H�P�L�X�P���� �� �$�Q���D�P�R�X�Q�W���H�T�X�D�O���W�R���W�K�H�� �H�[�F�H�V�V�� �R�I�� �W�K�H�� �L�V�V�X�H���S�U�L�F�H���R�I�� �D�� �3�U�H�P�L�X�P��
Bond over its stated redemption price at maturity constitutes premium on such Premium Bond.  An initial 
purchaser of a Premium Bond must �D�P�R�U�W�L�]�H�� �D�Q�\�� �S�U�H�P�L�X�P�� �R�Y�H�U�� �V�X�F�K�� �3�U�H�P�L�X�P�� �%�R�Q�G�¶�V�� �W�H�U�P�� �X�V�L�Q�J��
�F�R�Q�V�W�D�Q�W�� �\�L�H�O�G�� �S�U�L�Q�F�L�S�O�H�V���� �E�D�V�H�G�� �R�Q�� �W�K�H�� �S�X�U�F�K�D�V�H�U�¶�V�� �\�L�H�O�G���W�R�� �P�D�W�X�U�L�W�\�� ���R�U���� �L�Q�� �W�K�H�� �F�D�V�H���R�I�� �3�U�H�P�L�X�P�� �%�R�Q�G�V��
callable prior to their maturity, by amortizing the premium to the call date, based on the purc�K�D�V�H�U�¶�V���\�L�H�O�G��
�W�R���W�K�H���F�D�O�O���G�D�W�H���D�Q�G���J�L�Y�L�Q�J���H�I�I�H�F�W���W�R���W�K�H���F�D�O�O���S�U�H�P�L�X�P���������$�V���S�U�H�P�L�X�P���L�V���D�P�R�U�W�L�]�H�G�����W�K�H���S�X�U�F�K�D�V�H�U�¶�V���E�D�V�L�V���L�Q��
such Premium Bond is reduced by a corresponding amount resulting in an increase in the gain (or 
decrease in the loss) to be recognized for federal income tax purposes upon a sale or disposition of such 
�3�U�H�P�L�X�P�� �%�R�Q�G�� �S�U�L�R�U�� �W�R�� �L�W�V�� �P�D�W�X�U�L�W�\���� �� �(�Y�H�Q�� �W�K�R�X�J�K�� �W�K�H�� �S�X�U�F�K�D�V�H�U�¶�V�� �E�D�V�L�V�� �P�D�\�� �E�H�� �U�H�G�X�F�H�G���� �Q�R�� �I�H�G�H�U�D�O��
income tax deduction is allowed.  Purchasers of Premium Bonds should consult with their tax advisors 
with respect to the determination and treatment of amortizable premium for federal income tax purposes 
and with respect to the state and local tax consequences of owning a Premium Bond. 

TAX EXEMPTION 

In General 

In the opinion of Kutak Rock LLP, Bond Counsel, to be delivered at the time of original issuance of the 
Bonds, under existing laws, regulations, rulings and judicial decisions, interest on the Bonds (including 
any original issue discount properly allocable to the Bonds) is excludable from gross income for federal 
income tax purposes.  Bond Counsel is also of the opinion that such interest is neither a specific 



9 



10 

Continuing Disclosure 

In connection with the issuance of the Bonds, the District will execute and deliver a Continuing 
Disclosure Certificate (the �³�'�L�V�F�O�R�V�X�U�H�� �&�H�U�W�L�I�L�F�D�W�H�´), pursuant to the requirements of Securities and 
Exchange Commission Rule 15c2�±12 (the �³�5�X�O�H�´) under which the District will send certain financial 
information and operating data and provide notice of certain material events to the Municipal Securities 
Rulemaking Board (the �³�0�6�5�%�´) �W�K�U�R�X�J�K�� �W�K�H�� �0�6�5�%�¶�V�� �(�O�H�F�W�U�R�Q�L�F�� �0�X�Q�L�F�L�S�D�O�� �0�D�U�N�H�W�� �$�F�F�H�V�V�� �V�\�V�W�H�P��
(�³�(�0�0�$�´).  EMMA is an internet-based, online portal for free investor access to municipal bond 
information, including offering documents, material event notices, real-time municipal securities trade 
prices and MSRB education resources, available at www.emma.msrb.org.  Nothing contained on EMMA 
relating to the Bonds is incorporated by reference in this Official Statement.  The proposed form of the 
Disclosure Certificate is included in this Official Statement as �³�$�3�3�(�1�'�,�; C �± FORM OF 
CONTINUING DISCLOSURE CERTIFICATE .�  ́

The District inadvertently did not file timely certain of its annual financial information and operating data 
�I�R�U���W�K�H���\�H�D�U�V�������������D�Q�G���������������D�V���U�H�T�X�L�U�H�G���X�Q�G�H�U���W�K�H���5�X�O�H���D�Q�G���W�K�H���'�L�V�W�U�L�F�W�¶�V���S�U�H�Y�L�R�X�V���F�R�Q�W�L�Q�X�L�Q�J���G�L�V�F�O�R�V�X�U�H��
undertakings.  In accordance with the Rule and such undertakings, the District filed a material event 
notice on June 21, 2012, including its annual financial information and operating data, with the Municipal 
�6�H�F�X�U�L�W�L�H�V���5�X�O�H�P�D�N�L�Q�J���%�R�D�U�G�¶�V���(�0�0�$���Z�H�E�V�L�W�H���W�R���V�X�F�K���H�I�I�H�F�W�������7�K�H���'�L�V�W�U�L�F�W���L�V���Q�R�Z���L�Q���F�R�P�S�O�L�D�Q�F�H���Z�L�W�K���D�O�O��
of its existing continuing disclosure undertakings in all material respects and has implemented procedures 
in furtherance of its future compliance with the Rule. 

A failure by the District to comply with the Disclosure Certificate will not constitute a default under the 
Resolution, although bondholders will have any available remedy at law or in equity.  Any such failure 



11 

knowledge and belief of such officer, this Official Statement (and any amendment or supplement hereto) 
as of the date of sale and as of the date of delivery of the Bonds does not contain any untrue statement of 
a material fact or omit to state a material fact required to be stated therein or necessary to make the 
statements herein, in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading in any 
material respect. 

The District will, upon delivery of the Bonds, certify that there is no litigation pending affecting the 
validity of the Bonds as of the date of delivery. 

The form of this Official Statement, and its distribution and use by the Underwriter, has been approved by 
the District.  Neither the District nor any of its officers, directors or employees, in either their official or 
personal capacities, has made any warranties, representations or guarantees regarding the financial 
condition of the District o�U���W�K�H���'�L�V�W�U�L�F�W�¶�V���D�E�L�O�L�W�\���W�R���P�D�N�H���S�D�\�P�H�Q�W�V���U�H�T�X�L�U�H�G���R�I���L�W�����D�Q�G���I�X�U�W�K�H�U�����Q�H�L�W�K�H�U���W�K�H��
District nor its officers, directors or employees assumes any duties, responsibilities or obligations in 
relation to the issuance of the Bonds other than those either expressly or by fair implication imposed on 
the District by the Bond Resolution. 

This Official Statement is issued by the District. 

DOUGLAS COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 0017, 
IN THE STATE OF NEBRASKA 
(MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS) 
 
 
By:     
 Superintendent 

67



  

APPENDIX A  

INFORMATION CONCERNING THE DISTRICT

68



 A-1 

APPENDIX A  

INFORMATION CONCERNING THE DISTRICT 
___________________ 

GENERAL INFORMATION 

The District is located in the southwestern portion of the City of Omaha and in adjacent Sarpy 
County, Nebraska within the Omaha metropolitan area, approximately ten miles from the Omaha central 
business district.  District officials estimate that at present the population is approximately 125,000.  The 
District encompasses approximately thirty-five square miles (22,400 acres) and is the third largest school 
�G�L�V�W�U�L�F�W�� �L�Q�� �1�H�E�U�D�V�N�D�� ���W�K�H�� �³�6�W�D�W�H�´����with 22,676 students as of the beginning of the 2012-13 school year.  
The District operates twenty-four elementary schools, six middle schools and three senior high schools.  
The District has been accre�G�L�W�H�G���E�\���W�K�H���6�W�D�W�H���'�H�S�D�U�W�P�H�Q�W���R�I���(�G�X�F�D�W�L�R�Q���Z�L�W�K���D���U�D�W�L�Q�J���R�I���³�$�$���´���W�K�H���K�L�J�K�H�V�W��
rating given by the Department.  All of the schools in the District have been accredited by the North 
Central Association of Colleges and Schools. 



A-2 

Area Economy 

The economic viability of the Millard School District is tied closely to the general economy of the 
City of Omaha. 

City of Omaha�±General Information 

The following information about the City of Omaha, Nebraska is excerpted from previous City of 
Om�D�K�D�� �2�I�I�L�F�L�D�O�� �6�W�D�W�H�P�H�Q�W�V�� �D�Q�G�� �L�V�� �L�Q�F�O�X�G�H�G�� �E�H�F�D�X�V�H�� �W�K�H�� �'�L�V�W�U�L�F�W���L�V�� �O�R�F�D�W�H�G�� �Z�L�W�K�L�Q�� �W�K�H�� �&�L�W�\�¶�V�� �E�R�X�Q�G�D�U�L�H�V��
and in the surrounding metropolitan area.  The Series 2012 Bonds are not a debt of, nor are they 
payable by, the City of Omaha. 

Location and General Background.  Omaha, founded in 1854, is the largest city in the State of 
Nebraska.  Omaha is the hub of a vast transportation network leading to all parts of the nation and thus 
offers significant advantages to business and industry competing in regional and national markets.  This 
fact is substantiated by the growth of population, employment and income during recent years. 

Area and Population.  The U.S. Census Bureau in the 2010 Census reported the population of the 
eight�±county Omaha Metropolitan Statistical Ar�H�D�����³�0�6�$�´�������F�R�P�S�U�L�V�L�Q�J���I�L�Y�H���1�H�E�U�D�V�N�D���F�R�X�Q�W�L�H�V���D�Q�G���W�K�U�H�H��
Iowa counties, numbered 865,350 with over 1.1 million within a 60-minute drive.  The 2011 population 
estimate from the U.S. Census Bureau of the City of Omaha is approximately 416,855 and their estimate 
for the MSA is 881,493. 

Transportation.  Nearly 4.2 million passengers, over 94 million pounds of cargo and over 
50 �P�L�O�O�L�R�Q���S�R�X�Q�G�V���R�I���P�D�L�O���S�D�V�V�H�G���W�K�U�R�X�J�K���(�S�S�O�H�\���$�L�U�I�L�H�O�G�����2�P�D�K�D�¶�V���S�U�L�Q�F�L�S�D�O���D�L�U�S�R�U�W�����L�Q��2011.  In the last 
decade, Eppley Airfield has made over $110 million in investments in terminal, apron, cargo area and 
runway expansions.  Eppley Airfield offers between 150 and 170 flights per day and is serviced by eight 
national air carriers (recent mergers within the industry may change the number), 11 regional airlines, 
seven air freight carriers and two full�±service general aviation facilities.  A total of 129 general aviation 
aircraft, including 34 executive jets, are based at Eppley Airfield.  There are 90 departures out of Eppley 
Airfield daily. 

Omaha is general headquarters for the Union Pacific Railroad.  The Burlington Northern Santa Fe 
and the Canadian National railroads also provide service and combine to make Omaha an important rail 
center. 

Two interstate highways (Interstate 80 and Interstate 29), five federal highways and seven state 
highways provide fast all-weather routes within Nebraska and to and from the rest of the nation.  In 
addition, Interstate 480 (downtown spur) and Interstate 680 (circumferential route) provide quick access 
to all parts of the metropolitan area. 

More than 100 motor common carriers haul freight to and from Omaha and all parts of the nation, 
making Omaha a major Midwestern trucking center.  Several bus lines operate between Omaha and points 
in Iowa, Illinois and Nebraska. 

Utility Services.  Residential, commercial and industrial electric service rates in Omaha 
historically have been below the national averages, according to reports of the Edison Electric Institute in 
its Statistical Yearbook of the Electrical Utility Industry.  In addition to low rates, the Omaha Public 
Power District, a Nebraska political subdivision, assures its customers ample power with a net generating 
capability of 3,222.7 megawatts. 

The Metropolitan Utilities District (�³�0�8�'�´), a Nebraska political subdivision, distributes natural 
gas and water in the Omaha area.  Rates compare favorably with those prevailing in other metropolitan 
areas in the nation.  Omaha has a plentiful water supply (Missouri River and Platte River wells) and a 

70



A-3 

water system designed to the standards of the National Board of Fire Underwriters, with a current 
capacity of 334 �P�L�O�O�L�R�Q���J�D�O�O�R�Q�V���D���G�D�\�������0�8�'�¶�V���V�X�S�S�O�\���R�I���Q�D�W�X�U�D�O���J�D�V���L�V���S�X�U�F�K�D�V�H�G���Z�K�R�O�H�V�D�O�H���I�U�R�P���X�S���W�R��



A-4 

seasonally adjusted unemployment rate for the Omaha MSA was 4.2%, compared with 8.2% for the 
United States.   

SELECTED ECONOMIC INDICATORS 

Omaha MSA Population and Employment* 

  
Population1 

Non-Farm 
Employment2 

 

2000 769,117 441,600 
2001 775,380 444,500 
2002 782,384 439,400 
2003 790,535 440,700 
2004 800,459 441,900 
2005 810,493 448,800 
2006 820,051 456,800 
2007 829,183 463,600 
2008 839,265 469,800 
2009 849,517 459,500 
2010 868,097 457,300 
2011 877,110 460,400 

______________________ 
1  Source:  U.S. Census Bureau 
2  Source:  Greater Omaha Chamber of Commerce; US Bureau of Labor Statistics. 

72





A-6 

Omaha MSA (Eight Counties) Non-Farm Employment 

Industry  Average for 2010 Average for 2011 Average for 2012* 
 Number % of Total  Number % of Total  Number % of Total  
       
Mining, Logging and Construction 20,900 4.6 19,900 4.3 20,300 4.4 
Manufacturing 31,000 6.8 31,400 6.8 31,900 6.9 
Trade, Transportation and Utilities 94,000 20.6 93,200 20.2 93,800 20.2 
Information 11,100 2.4 11,000 2.4 10,800 2.3 
Financial Activities 40,200 8.8 41,000 8.9 40,200 8.7 
Professional and Business Services 63,000 13.8 64,700 14.1 65,100 14.0 
Education and Healthcare Services 70,100 15.4 71,900 15.6 74,300 16.0 
Leisure and Hospitality 43,600 9.6 44,500 9.7 44,300 9.5 
Other Services 17,600 3.9 17,300 3.8 17,300 3.7 
Government 65,100 14.3 65,400 14.2 66,100 14.2 
          
Total Non-Farm Employment 456,500 100.0 460,300 100.0 464,100 100.0 
       
*Average through June 2012       
       

  
Source:  U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics: State and Area Employment, Hours and Earnings 

74



A-7 

SELECTED FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

 
GENERAL OBLIGATION DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS 

The debt service requirements on all outstanding District general obligation bonds are shown below. 

 
 

Fiscal Year Ending 
August 31 

 Total 
Outstanding 

General Obligation 
Debt Service� 

2013  $  12,905,581.67 
2014   

2014

 

  

2014

   

2014

   

2014   



A-8 

ESTIMATED OVERLAPPING AND UNDERLYING DEBT 
As of June 30, 2012 

 
 

 Net Bonded Debt 
Percentage 

Applicable to 
School District 0017 

Net Debt 
Applicable to 

School District 0017 



A-9 



A-10 

MAJOR TAXPAYERS 

Valuations In Excess of $10,000,000 
(as of April 16, 2012) 

Name of Taxpayer 
Valuation 

of Real Property 

OAK VIEW MALL LLC  $103,206,100 
COMMERCIAL FEDERAL SAVINGS & LOAN  43,432,000 
EM OMAHA OWNER LLC 40,368,700 
OMAHA PLAZA INVESTMENTS LLC 36,287,300 
WACHOVIA DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 34,060,000 
BISHOP CLARKSON MEMORIAL HOSPITAL  33,204,300 
OMAHA MARKETPLACE HOLDINGS LLC 32,971,200 

 AVG-CFM 204Q LLC 28,537,300 
LVP OAKVIEW STRIP CENTER LLC 24,434,800 
LINDEN PLACE LTD PTNRS 1 21,835,100 
WEST PACIFIC APARTMENTS LLC 20,855,300 
NDC WEST DODGE LLC 20,689,900 
MONTCLAIR INVESTMENT CO 19,867,600 
ORIENTAL TRADING COMPANY INC 19,113,800 
PHOENIX REALTY SPECIAL ACCOUNT 16,128,000 
SFI LTD PARTNERSHIP 44 15,771,200 
ORCHARD AVENUE APARTMENTS LLC 14,871,000 
NS-156 Q LLC 14,775,000 
FARM CREDIT SERV OF AMERICA 14,253,100 
11818 I STREET LLC 13,783,200 
HONEYDEW LLC 13,676,200 
BROOKSTONE VILLAGE INC 13,488,800 
PEPPERWOOD VILLAGE LLC 13,197,100 
TARGET CORPORATION 
 

12,648,800 
WAL-MART REAL ESTATE BUSINESS 12,630,100 
SILVERCREST 108 & Q 12,357,000 
FLIK INC 12,068,000 
WALNUT GROVE RETIREMENT 11,170,600 
TIC METROPOLITAN OFFICES LLC 11,076,300 
WEST DODGE APARTMENTS LTD 11,070,800 
CONSTRUCTION DEVELOPERS INC 11,025,700 
FIRSTPORT LP 11,001,000 
CALIFORNIA RED LLC 10,505,200 
SWEETBRIAR III LLC 10,286,300 
TYSON PROCESSING SERVICES INC 10,275,000 

 
Source:  The Office of the Douglas County Clerk, report dated April 16, 2012. 

78



A-11 

PROPERTY TAX COLLECTIONS 

Property taxes on tangible property, real and personal, are levied by the District, collected and 
held by Douglas and Sarpy County Treasurers, and credited to the General Fund, Special Fund and Bond 
Fund Accounts of the District.  Taxes become due December 31.  In Douglas County and Sarpy County, 
the first half of tax payable becomes delinquent the following April 1 and the second half August 1. 

Schedule of Tax Collections* 

School Year Taxes Certified Total Collections 
Amount 





  

APPENDIX B 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS �¶ REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

81



  

APPENDIX C 

FORM OF CONTINUING DISCLOSURE CERTIFICATE 

82



 C-2 

APPENDIX C 

FORM OF CONTINUING DISCLOSURE CERTIFICATE  

�7�K�L�V�� �&�R�Q�W�L�Q�X�L�Q�J�� �'�L�V�F�O�R�V�X�U�H�� �&�H�U�W�L�I�L�F�D�W�H�� ���W�K�H�� �³�'�L�V�F�O�R�V�X�U�H�� �&�H�U�W�L�I�L�F�D�W�H�´������ �G�D�W�H�G�� �D�V�� �R�I��November 16, 
2012,  is executed and delivered by Douglas County School District 0017 in the State of Nebraska (Millard 
�3�X�E�O�L�F�� �6�F�K�R�R�O�V���� ���W�K�H�� �³�'�L�V�W�U�L�F�W�´���� �L�Q�� �F�R�Q�Q�H�F�W�L�R�Q�� �Z�L�W�K�� �W�K�H�� �L�V�V�X�D�Q�F�H�� �R�I�� ��__________ in aggregate principal 
amount of General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2012 ���W�K�H���³Bond�V�´���������7�K�H���D�S�S�U�R�Y�D�O���R�I���W�K�H���L�V�V�X�D�Q�F�H��
of the Bonds was authorized pursuant to a resolution adopted by the Board of Education of the District on 
__________ __�����������������W�K�H���³�5�H�V�R�O�X�W�L�R�Q�´���������7�K�H���'�L�V�W�U�L�F�W���F�R�Y�H�Q�D�Q�W�V���D�Q�G���D�J�U�H�H�V���D�V���I�R�O�O�R�Z�V�� 

Section 1.  Purpose of the Disclosure Certificate





 C-4 

(i) Defeasances; 

(j) Release, substitution or sale of property securing repayment of the Bonds, if 
material;  

(k) Rating changes; 

(l) Bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar event of the District; 

(m) The consummation of a merger, consolidation or acquisition involving the District 
or the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the District other than in the ordinary course of 





  

APPENDIX D 

BOOK-ENTRY SYSTEM

87



 

D-1 

APPENDIX D 

BOOK-ENTRY SYSTEM  

The Bonds are available in book-entry only form and beneficial ownership interests therein may 
be purchased in the principal amount of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof.  Purchasers of the Bonds 
will not receive certificates representing their interests in the Bonds. 



 

 D-2 

Direct and Indirect Participants acting on behalf of Beneficial Owners.  Beneficial Owners will not 
receive certificates representing their ownership interests in Series 2012 Bonds, except in the event that 
use of the book-entry system for the Series 2012 Bonds is discontinued. 

To facilitate subsequent transfers, all Series 2012 Bonds deposited by Direct Participants with 
DTC are registered in the name of �'�7�&�¶�V���S�D�U�W�Q�H�U�V�K�L�S���Q�R�P�L�Q�H�H�����&�H�G�H & Co., or such other name as may 
be requested by an authorized representative of DTC.  The deposit of Securities with DTC and their 
registration in the name of Cede & Co. or such other DTC nominee do not effect any change in beneficial 
ownership.  DTC has no knowledge of the actual Beneficial Owners of the Series 2012 �%�R�Q�G�V���� �'�7�&�¶�V��





  

APPENDIX E 

FORM OF OPINION OF BOND COUNSEL 
 

91



 

4833-7054-4913.1  

 

 APPENDIX E 
 

FORM OF OPINION OF BOND COUNSEL 
 
 

                 , 2012 
 
 

Board of Education 
Douglas County School District 017 
  in the State of Nebraska 
Omaha, NE  68137 
 

$               
Douglas County School District 017, 

In the State of Nebraska 
(Millard Public Schools) 

General Obligation Refunding Bonds 
Series 2012 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

We have acted as Bond Counsel in connection with the issuance and sale by the Douglas 







AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 

Meeting Date: October 1, 2012 

Department Human Resources 

Action Desired: Approval 

Background: Personnel items: (1) Hire 
 
Options/Alternatives  
Considered: N/A 
 
Recommendations: Approval 

Strategic Plan 

Reference: N/A 

Implications of  
Adoption/Rejection: N/A 
 
Timeline: N/A 

Responsible 
Persons: Jim Sutfin, Ed.D. 
 

   

 

 

kksullivan
Dr Lutz



October 1, 2012 
 

 
TEACHERS RECOMMENDED FOR HIRE 

 
 
Recommend: the following teachers be hired for the 2012/2013 school year: 
 

1. Megan S. Janda – BA – University of Nebraska, Omaha.  Grade 2 teacher at Holling Heights 
Elementary School for the 2012-2013 school year. 
 
 

96



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 
 
 

Agenda Item: Summer School Report  
 
Meeting Date: October 1, 2012 
 
Department: Educational Services 
 
Title and Brief  
Description: Summer School Report 
 
Action Desired: Information Only  

Background:   The opportunity to participate in extended school offerings during the 
summer was provided to Pre-K through Grade 12 students. 
Opportunities to continue to develop competency in reading, math, 
and writing skills were offered to all students.  

 A total of 1,472 students attended MPS Summer School, which is an 
increase of 22 students from the previous year. These students had 
more than 1,855 course enrollments, a decline of 11 course 
enrollments from 2011.  

 The 2012 Summer School Program end-of-year financial statements 
reflect a deficit of $3,031.93 when not including the State Aid 
Summer School Allowance for FY12 of $462,047.  This contrasts 
with the 2011 deficit of $3,354.12.  As approved by the Board of 
Education in December, 2011, Rule 6655.1, parents were able to 
utilize an on-line credit card payment and processing company 
(RevTrak).  Fifty-three percent of collected tuition was paid by credit 
card. 

 
Recommendations:   Receive the report 
 
Strategic Plan  
Reference:   Strategies 4, 5 and 6 



2012 Summer School Data 

  
Elementary 

Elementary Alternate 
Curriculum Program 

Middle Level 



�x Total student enrollment in Summer School increased to 1,459.  
 

�x The total number of course enrollments was 1,838 with 17 additional students 
participating in courses for students with disabilities. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
�x Tuition rates did not change in 2012, with the exception of the middle school mini-

course, Babysitting Basics.  First-aid and CPR certification fees were included in tuition, 
increasing tuition from $60 to $95 for students who are Millard residents.  Out-of-district 
tuition for this course was $110. 
 

�x In 2012 there were 476 course enrollments by students who qualify for free or reduced 
price lunches.  This was 26% of all course enrollments. 
 

 

99



 
ELEMENTARY SUMMER SCHOOL REPORT 

 
The 2012 elementary summer program was held at Neihardt Elementary School.  There were 
twenty, 3-week courses, with 36 sections, held for three hours per day.  Enrollment increased 
slightly from 602 students in 2011 to 604 students in 2012.  Elementary Alternate Curriculum 
Program courses were offered concurrently in June at Neihardt for students with moderate to 
severe disabilities. 
 
Summary Information 
Location:    Neihardt 
Dates:     June 11-June 28, M-Th 
Time:     8:30-11:50 
Administrator:    Amanda Hunt 
Number of Teachers:   36 
Number of Students:   604 
Alter



MIDDLE LEVEL SUMMER SCHOOL REPORT 
 

The middle level summer program was offered at Russell Middle School.  Sixteen, 3-week 
courses were offered.  Babysitting Basics was the only mini-course offered and three sections 
were held.  Middle school enrollment increased from 226 in 2011 to 256 in 2012.   
Summary Information 
Location:     Russell Middle School 
Dates:      June 11-June 28, M-Th 
Time:      8:00-11:15, 11:50-3:00 
Administrator:     Tassandra Little 
Number of Teachers:    17 
Number of Students:    256 
Number of Course Enrollments:  359 
 
The following courses were held during the 3 week summer session: 
6 Grade Reading and Writing    6 Grade Master your Math 
6 Grade Be Cool in Middle School   6 Grade Pre-Algebra Prep 
 
7 Grade Reading/Writing     
  
8 Grade Reading/Writing    8 Grade Master your Math 
 
6, 7, 8 Art Expressions    6, 7, 8 Guitar 
6, 7, 8 Computer/Multi-media   6, 7, 8 Digital Art/Photoshop 
6, 7, 8 Intro to Photojournalism   6, 7, 8 Drama 
6, 7, 8 Forensic Science    6, 7, 8 Math Plus (HAL) 
6, 7, 8 Spanish 
 
Mini-courses: One week          
   Babysitting (3 sections)          
        
The following course was offered in the spring, but cancelled due to low enrollment during 
the final week of May:

7 Grade Master your Math
 
Points of Special Note: 

�x The daily average number of students eating school lunch was approximately 67 students.  
The daily average number of meals served to students who were eligible for free or 
reduced lunch was 39, or 58%. 
 

�x The average daily attendance rate was 95%. 
 

�x The number of courses taken which qualified for tuition waivers due to students 
qualifying for the free or reduced price lunch program was 80.  This is 22% of all middle 
school courses taken in 2012. 

 
�x 142 incoming sixth grade students accounted for 187 course enrollments, or 52% of all 

middle school course enrollments. 
 

101



�x Eighty-eight students participated in reading and math reteaching courses.  This is 25% of 
all course enrollments. 

 
�x Popular elective courses were:  Math Prep for Pre-Algebra: 24, Art Expressions: 22, Be 

Cool in Middle School: 22, Intro to Photojournalism: 21, 3 sections of Babysitting: 60 
total. 
 

�x Forensic Science evolved from a mini-course to a three-week course.  Therefore, 
enrollment in the one-week mini-courses dropped from 70 in 2011 to 60 in 2012.  Sixteen 
students participated in the 3



HIGH SCHOOL SUMMER SESSION REPORT 
 
 
The high school program offers students the opportunity to repeat courses they have not yet 
passed, to take courses that may be difficult to schedule during the regular school year, or to take 
courses out of interest, or to work towards completion of graduation requirements.  The program 
was held at Millard West High School from June 11 �± July 13, 2012



�x 80 students took a math course for credit recovery and 51 students took an English course 
for credit recovery. 

�x Seven students graduated at the end of summer school. Two additional students did not 
complete the requirements.  One student is enrolled at the assigned high school and the 
other is attending Ombudsman. 

�x 36 students completed the full year courses: Algebra (14), and Geometry (22), in the full-
day, 5-week semester classes. 

�x Physical Education classes continue to be very popular.  A third section of Lifetime 
Fitness was added and held at Russell Middle School.   Two hundred eight students took 
a PE course.  This is 24% of all high school course enrollments. 

�x Two students participated in the ELO Math Course, one of whom met the cutscore.  

�x The number of courses failed in 2012 was 29, including 9 Withdrawal Failures.  This was 
an increase from 27 in 2011. 

�x 77 courses were dropped after June 11th which was an increase from 50 in 2011.   
Twenty-eight or 36% of the drops were from English and Math courses.   

 
Enrollment fro



SUMMER SCHOOL PROGRAM  
CONSIDERATIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
�x The decrease in out-of district may be contributed to the increase in tuition in 2011.   

�x 55 Elementary students attended Summer School in June and the Elementary Learning 



 

2012 Summer School Programs Financial Report 
 



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

AGENDA ITEM: ACT and SAT 2011-2012 Results

MEETING DATE: October 1, 2012

kksullivan
Dr Lutz



ACT & SAT 
RESULTS 

2011-2012  
 
 
 
                                                                               

 
 
 
 
 

                                                                                     
 
 

Educational Services 
Department of Assessment, Research, and Evaluation 

Fall 2012 
 



 

 
INTRODUCTION 

 
 
The American College Test (ACT) and the Scholastic Aptitude Test (SAT I) are widely 
used college admissions tests that are typically taken by high school juniors and seniors.  
Both tests measure skills that students have learned in high school and that they will need 
for academic success in college. 
 
 
ACT 
 
The ACT is a 2 hour and 55 minute test that includes 215 questions.  In 1989 a revised 
version of the ACT was introduced which reflected the changes in high school 
curriculum.  The old test included the four areas of English, mathematics, social studies, 
and natural science.  The new ACT Assessment includes: 
 

English 
75 items/45 minutes 

 
Mathematics 
60 items/60 minutes 

 
Reading 
40 items/35 minutes 

 
Science Reasoning 
40 items/35 minutes 

 
In addition, students receive subtest scores for each of the four tests. 
 
The ACT Writing Test, which measures skill in planning and writing a short essay, is 
optional. 
 
The ACT standard score scale ranges from 1 to 36. 
 
 
SAT 
 
The SAT is a 4 hour mixed method test that includes written response as well as multiple-
choice questions that measure developed verbal and mathematical reasoning abilities as 
well as writing.  The SAT scores are intended to supplement the secondary school record 
and other information about the student in assessing readiness for college-level work.  
Student performance on the SAT is reported on a scale of 200 to 800 on each sub-test. 

109



Avera g e ACT Scores b y  Level of Academic Pre p aration

District
2004-05 682 406 58 34 23.7 20.7 24.2 21.0 24.1 21.6 23.6 21.5 24.0 21.4
2005-06 631 424 55 37 23.9 21.1 24.2 21.5 24.4 21.6 23.8 21.6 24.2 21.6
2006-07 564 434 47 36 24.2 21.3 24.7 21.6 24.6 21.9 24.4 21.7 24.6 21.8
2007-08 797 409 63 32 23.9 20.7 24.4 21.2 24.5 21.9 24.0 21.4 24.3 21.4
2008-09 941 350 73 27 24.3 20.7 24.3 20.9 24.6 21.9 23.9 21.2 24.4 21.3
2009-10 938 339 73 26 24.3 20.6 24.2 20.5 24.6 22.0 24.2 20.9 24.5 21.1
2010-11 927 360 72 28 24.0 20.5 24.3 20.4 24.5 21.8 24.2 21.2 24.4 21.1
2011-12 932 351 72 27 24.0 20.4 24.4 20.7 24.4 21.4 24.1 21.3 24.4 21.1

State
2004-05 10,913 4,397 67 27 22.4 19.3 22.5 19.7 22.8 20.1 22.4 20.1 22.6 19.9
2005-06 10,133 4,517 64 28 22.5 19.7 22.4 20.0 23.0 20.6 22.5 20.5 22.7 20.3
2006-07 9,539 4,458 59 28 22.7 19.8 22.6 20.1 23.2 20.8 22.6 20.5 22.9 20.4
2007-08 11,934 3,944 72 24 22.6 19.5 22.6 19.7 23.2 20.6 22.5 20.1 22.8 20.1
2008-09 12,701 3,346 78 21 22.7 19.1 22.5 19.4 23.2 20.1 22.6 19.9 22.9 19.8
2009-10 12,870 3,053 80 19 22.7 18.9 22.3 19.1 23.1 20.1 22.7 19.8 22.8 19.6
2010-11 13,168 3,120 80 19 22.5 18.9 22.3 19.1 22.9 20.0 22.5 19.8 22.7 19.6
2011-12 13,515 2,896 82 17 22.4 18.9 22.3 19.2 22.8 19.9 22.4 19.7 22.6 19.5

National
2004-05 658,430 406,763 56 34 21.6 18.8 21.7 19.1 22.2 19.8 21.7 19.6 21.9 19.5
2005-06 647,298 413,888 54 34 21.6 19.0 21.8 19.4 22.3 20.1 21.7 19.7 22.0 19.7
2006-07 659,603 444,906 51 34 21.7 19.2 21.9 19.6 22.4 20.2 21.8 19.8 22.0 19.8
2007-08 873,743 431,748 61 30 21.6 18.8 21.9 19.3 22.3 19.9 21.6 19.4 22.0 19.5
2008-09 1,039,502 391,458 70 26 21.7 18.3 21.9 18.9 22.3 19.4 21.7 19.2 22.0 19.1
2009-10 1,118,639 397,685 71 25 21.6 18.1 21.9 18.9 22.2 19.2 21.7 19.0 22.0 18.9
2010-11 1,202,164 366,518 74 23 21.5 18.3 21.8 19.0 22.0 19.3 21.6 19.0 21.9 19.0
2011-12 1,259,744 355,849 76 21 21.3 18.3 21.8 19.1 22.0 19.4 21.6 19.1 21.8 19.1

Avera g e ACT Scores for All Graduate s

Number Mathematics Sci Reason Composite
District
2004-05 1,186 22.5 22.9 23.1 22.8 23.0
2005-06 1,156 22.8 23.1 23.3 22.9 23.1
2006-07 1,197 23.0 23.3 23.4 23.2 23.4
2007-08 1,265 22.8 23.3 23.6 23.1 23.3
2008-09 1,293 23.3 23.4 23.9 23.2 23.6
2009-10 1,280 23.3 23.2 23.9 23.3 23.6
2010-11 1,294 23.0 23.2 23.7 23.3 23.4
2011-12 1,292 23.0 23.4 23.6 23.3 23.4

State
2004-05 16,220 21.4 21.6 21.9 21.7 21.8
2005-06 15,892 21.5 21.6 22.2 21.8 21.9
2006-07 16,137 21.8 21.8 22.4 21.9 22.1
2007-08 16,573 21.8 21.8 22.5 21.9 22.1
2008-09 16,286 21.9 21.8 22.5 22.0 22.1
2009-10 16,172 21.8 21.6 22.4 22.0 22.1
2010-11 16,461 21.8 21.7 22.3 22.0 22.1
2011-12 16,581 21.8 21.7 22.3 21.9 22.0

National
2004-05 1,186,251 20.4 20.7 21.3 20.9 20.9
2005-06 1,206,455 20.6 20.8 21.4 20.9 21.1
2006-07 1,300,599 20.7 21.0 21.5 21.0 21.2
2007-08 1,421,941 20.6 21.0 21.4 20.8 21.1
2008-09 1,480,469 20.6 21.0 21.4 20.9 21.1
2009-10 1,568,835
2010-11 1,623,112
2011-12 1,666,017

   Number
   Core  /  Less

English Reading

Mathematics
Core  /  Less

English
Core  /  Less

     Percent
Core  /  Less

  Composite
Core  /  Less

 Sci Reason
Core  /  Less

Reading
Core  /  Less

21.120.921.320.5 21.1

20.5 21.0 21.3 21.0
20.6 21.1 21.3

20.9
20.9 21.1

110







North High

79re7%87.13%86.16%83.81%



English Math Reading Science Composite

2011-12 20.8 21.2 21.4 21.7 21.4

2010-11 21.3 21.8 22.5 22.4 22.1

2009-10 21.5 21.6 22.6 22.2 22.1

2008-09 21.7 22.4 22.5 22.6 22.4





2
5

6
7

4
6

5
2

3
1

3
0 7

5

5
1

5
9

3
6

3
9

8
2 6

3

6
7

4
6

0

10 20 30 40 50 60 70 80 90
A

ll 
F

ourE
nglishM

athR
eadingS

cienceP
e

r
c

e
n

t
 

o
f

 
S

t
u

d
e

n
t

s
 

M
e

e
t

i
n

g
 

A
C

T
 

C
o

l
l

e
g

e
 

R
e

a
d

i
n

e
s

s
 

B
e

n
c

h
m

a
r

k
 

S
c

o
r

e
s

e
31-12

N
a

t
i

o
n

a
l

N
e

b
r

a
s

k
a

M
i

l
l

a
r

d
A

C
T

 
C

o
l

l
e

g
e

 
B

e
n

c
h

m
a

r
k

 
s

c
o

r
e

 
i

s
 

t
h

e
 

m
i

n
i

m
u

m
 

s
c

o
r

e
 

n
e

e
d

e
d

 
o

n
 

a
n

 
A

C
T

 
s

u
b

j
e

c
t

-
a

r
e

a
 

t
e

s
t

 
to 

indicate 
a 

50%
 

chance 
of 

obtaining 
a 

B
 

or 
higher, 

or 
about 

a 
75%

 
chance 

of 
obtaining 

a 
C 

or higher in the corresponding credit-bearing college course.

116



 

USA NE MPS USA NE MPS USA NE MPS USA NE MPS USA NE MPS USA NE MPS USA NE MPS

All Students 21.1 21.9 23.1 21.2 22.1 23.4 21.1 22.1 23.3 21.1 22.1 23.6 21.0 22.1 23.6 21.1 22.1 23.4 21.1 22.0 23.4

African��



 

USA NE MPS USA NE MPS USA NE MPS USA NE MPS USA NE MPS USA NE MPS USA NE MPS

All Students 21.1 21.9 23.1 21.2 22.1 23.4 21.1 22.1 23.3 21.1 22.1 23.6 21.0 22.1 23.6 21.1 22.1 23.4 21.1 22.0 23.4

African��
American/��Black

17.1 17.7 19.3 17.0 17.9 20.9 16.9 17.5 21.8 16.9 17.7 20.2 16.9 17.8 20.1 17.0 17.5 19.2 17.0 17.1 19.9

American��Indian/��
Alaska��Native

18.8 18.8 21.8 18.9 19.1 25.0 19.0 19.1 �r 18.9 19.3 25.0 19.0 19.1 23.0 18.6 18.8 21.5 18.4 17.9 20.0

Caucasian��
American/��White

22.0 22.3 23.3 22.1 22.4 23.3 22.1 22.5 23.3 22.2 22.6 23.7 22.3 22.6 23.6 22.4 22.7 23.5 22.4 22.7 23.6

Hispanic/��Latino 18.6 19.0 21.0 18.7 19.2 22.5 18.7 19.5 22.1 18.7 19.1 20.3 18.6 19.1 23.7 18.7 19.0 21.3 18.9 19.0 20.9

Asian 22.3 21.9 22.6 22.6 22.7 26.3 22.9 22.9 24.6 23.2 22.4 24.4 23.4 23.0 26.4 23.6 22.3 26.9 23.6 22.1 25.5

Native��Hawaiian/��
Pacific��Islander

� r � r � r � r � r � r � r � r � r � r � r � r � r � r � r19.5 17.3 �r 19.8 18.1 17.5

Two��or��More��
Races

� r � r � r21.0 21.6 22.8 20.9 21.3 21.2 21.0 21.5 23.7 21.0 21.2 22.4 21.1 20.8 21.5 21.4 21.6 23.8

Prefer��Not��to��
Respond/��No��
Response

21.1 21.5 22.5 21.7 22.1 23.5 21.8 21.9 24.1 20.9 21.4 24.6 20.5 20.8 23.0 20.7 22.0 24.1 21.3 22.6 23.6

20122010 20112006 2007 2008 2009

118





2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

Millard 579 575 585 581 591 596 591

Nebraska 566 562 566 570 568 569 562

National 497 494 493 492 491 489 488

0
100
200
300
400
500
600
700

SAT Writing Scores
Since Inception

.

2

4

5

.

2

4

6

.

2

4

7

.

2

4

8

.

2

4

9

.

2

1

0

.

2

1

1

.

2

1

2

M

i

l

l

a

r

d

6

4

6

5

9

9

6

4

6

6

4

5

6

1

6

6

1

8

6

1

6

6

1

9

N

e

b

r

a

s

k

a



Critical
Reading Math Writing

North High 630 640 618

South High 572 557 546

West High 584 598 578

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

2010-11 Scores 

77

13

49

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

North High South High West High





Elementary Classroom Enrollment Class
Current Current YTD Official 12/13 Size W/out

K 1 2 3 4 5 Total Change Change Enrollment SPED
Abbott 22 23 22 23 22 23

22 22 22 23 21 23
20 21 23 23 22 24

22





SpEd Current Current YTD Official 12/13
K 1 2 3 4 5 Cluster Total Change Change Enrollment

Reeder 20 21 22 23 24 24 7
21 22 21 24 24 23 6
22 23 21 25 24 23
20 22 21 25 24
18 22

Total Students 101 88 107 97 72 94 13 572  --  --  -- 559
Total Teachers 5 4 5 4 3 4 2 27 25
Classroom Avg 21.0 22.0 21.3 23.5 24.0 23.3 8.0 21 22

SpEd Current Current YTD Official 12/13
K 1 2 3 4 5 Cluster Total Change Change Enrollment

Rockwell 18 19 16 27 19 24 5
17 18 19 26 19 26 4
17 19 18 19

Total Students 52 56 53 53 57 50 9 330  --  --  -- 321
Total Teachers 3 3 3 2 3 2 4 20 16
Classroom Avg 17.3 18.5 17.5 26.5 19.0 25.0 8.0 17 20

SpEd Current Current YTD Official 12/13
K 1 2 3 4 5 Cluster Total Change Change Enrollment

Rohwer 23 22 23 24 23 21 7
23 23 21 24 21 20 7

24 20 23 23 22
21

Total Students 46 69 64 71 67 84 14 415  --  --  -- 401
Total Teachers 2 3 3 3 3 4 2 20 18
Classroom Avg 23.0 23.0 21.3 23.7 22.3 21.0 8.0 21 22

Current Current YTD Official 12/13
K 1 2 3 4 5 Total Change Change Enrollment

Sandoz 16 24 22 18 27 16
16 22 21 18 26 15
17 23 18 18

Total Students 49 69 43 54 53 49 317  --  --  -- 317
Total Teachers 3 3 2 3 2 3 16 16
Classroom Avg 16.3 23.0 21.5 18.0 26.5 16.3 20 20

Current Current YTD Official 12/13
K 1 2 3 4 5 Total Change Change Enrollment

Upchurch 24 25 22 25 21 24
23 24 22 22 21 25
22 25 21 25 22 24
24 25 21 19 21
21 21 24

Total Students 114 99 107 115 85 73 593  --  --  -- 593
Total Teachers 5 4 5 5 4 3 26 26
Classroom Avg 22.8 24.8 21.4 23.0 21.3 24.3 23 23

SpEd Current Current YTD Official 12/13
K 1 2 3 4 5 Cluster Total Change Change Enrollment

Wheeler 17 22 19 26 26 29 8
20 25 19 25 23 27 8
19 24 22 22 27 25 7
21 22 19 26 26 26

Total Students 77 93 79 99 102 107 23 580  --  --  -- 557
Total Teachers 4 4 4 4 4 4 3 27 24
Classroom Avg


	Board Packet October 1, 2012



